ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 14, 2007
1: 03 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto, Co-Chair
Representative Crai g Johnson, Co-Chair
Representative Vic Kohring
Represent ati ve Bob Roses
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative David Guttenberg
Representative Scott Kawasaki

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l menbers present

OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
Represent ati ve Bob Buch
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 177
"An Act relating to the Alaska Gasline Inducenent Act;
establishing the Alaska Gasline [Inducement  Act mat chi ng
contribution fund; providing for an Al aska Gasline |nducenent
Act coordinator; naking conform ng anendnments; and providing for
an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 177

SHORT TI TLE: NATURAL GAS PI PELI NE PRQIECT
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

03/ 05/ 07 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 05/ 07 (H) O8G, RES, FIN

03/ 06/ 07 (H) 08G AT 3:00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 06/ 07 (H) -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 08/ 07 (H) 08G AT 3:00 PM BARNES 124

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- April 14, 2007



03/ 08/ 07
03/ 13/ 07
03/ 13/ 07
03/ 13/ 07
03/ 15/ 07
03/ 15/ 07
03/ 15/ 07
03/ 19/ 07
03/ 19/ 07
03/ 19/ 07
03/ 20/ 07
03/ 20/ 07
03/ 20/ 07
03/ 21/ 07
03/ 21/ 07
03/ 21/ 07
03/ 22/ 07
03/ 22/ 07
03/ 22/ 07
03/ 23/ 07
03/ 23/ 07
03/ 23/ 07
03/ 24/ 07
03/ 24/ 07
03/ 26/ 07
03/ 26/ 07
03/ 26/ 07
03/ 27/ 07
03/ 28/ 07
03/ 28/ 07
03/ 28/ 07
03/ 28/ 07
03/ 28/ 07
03/ 28/ 07
03/ 29/ 07
03/ 29/ 07
03/ 29/ 07
03/ 30/ 07
03/ 30/ 07
03/ 30/ 07
03/ 31/ 07
03/ 31/ 07
04/ 02/ 07
04/ 02/ 07
04/ 02/ 07
04/ 03/ 07
04/ 03/ 07

HOUSE RES COW TTEE

IIIIITTTITITTITIIIITIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIILL

-- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

G&G AT 3: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

O&G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

O&G AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

O&G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

C&G AT 5: 30 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( 08G)

&G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( 08G)

&G AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( 08G)

G&G AT 1: 00 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532

-- Public Testinony --

O&G AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&GQ)

&G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
O&G AT 7:30 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

O&G AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

O&G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

O&G AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

O&G AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124
-- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

O&G AT 8: 30 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

O&G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124

Moved CSHB 177(0&G5 Qut of Conmmittee

14, 2007



04/ 03/ 07 (H) M NUTE( O&G)

04/ 04/ 07 (H) &G RPT CS(0&G) NT 3DP 2NR 2AM
04/ 04/ 07 (H) DP: RAMRAS, DOOGAN, OLSON
04/ 04/ 07 (H) NR: SAMUELS, KAWASAK

04/ 04/ 07 (H AM DAHLSTROM KOHRI NG

04/ 04/ 07 (H) Q&G AT 8: 30 AM CAPI TOL 106
04/ 04/ 07 (H) -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

04/ 05/ 07 (H) &G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
04/ 05/ 07 (H) -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

04/ 10/ 07 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124
04/ 10/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 10/ 07 (H) M NUTE( RES)

04/ 11/ 07 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124
04/ 11/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 11/ 07 (H) M NUTE( RES)

04/ 12/ 07 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124
04/ 12/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 12/ 07 (H) M NUTE( RES)

04/ 13/ 07 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124
04/ 13/ 07 (H) Bills Previously Heard/ Schedul ed
04/ 14/ 07 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

MARK HANLEY, Manager, Public Affairs

Anadar ko Petr ol eum Cor porati on ( Anadar ko)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 177 and answered
guesti ons.

TONY PALMER, Vi ce-President, Al aska Devel opnent

TransCanada Corporation, Inc. (TransCanada)

Cal gary, Alberta

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Described TransCanada's interest in
Al aska's pipeline project, expressed general agreenent with HB
177, and answered questi ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR CARL GATTO called the House Resources Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:03:40 PM Represent ati ves
Gatto, Johnson, Kawasaki, Edgnon, GQuttenberg, Seaton, W]Ison,
and Kohring were present at the call to order. Representati ve
Roses arrived as the neeting was in progress. Representati ve

Buch was al so i n attendance.

HB 177- NATURAL GAS PI PELI NE PRQJECT

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- April 14, 2007



1: 04: 04 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 177, "An Act relating to the Al aska Gasline
| nducenent Act; establishing the Alaska Gasline I|nducenent Act
contribution fund; providing for an Al aska Gasline |nducenent
Act coordi nator; making conform ng anendnents; and providing for
an effective date." [Before the commttee was CSHB 177(0&G) . ]

1: 06: 43 PM

MARK  HANLEY, Manager , Public Affairs, Anadar ko Petrol eum
Corporation (Anadarko) informed the conmttee that Anadarko
i ndependently explores for oil and gas, and partners with other
conpani es in some situations. It currently has an interest in,
or contributes to, operations on approximately 5.4 mllion gross
acres in Al aska. Its net acreage is about 1.8 mllion acres on
the North Slope. He opined that the Foothills area is sonewhat
nmore "gas prone.” He offered that Anadarko is continuing
exploration activities in order to keep its leases with the
st ate.

1: 09: 21 PM

CO-CHAI R GATTO asked how a | essee could lose its | eases with the
state.

MR. HANLEY replied that a |lessee could turn a lease in at the
end of the lease term One of the ways to keep a lease is to
drill a well and discover a "comercial quantity" of oil or gas.
He noted that sonetinmes a |essee chooses to relinquish a |ease
if the exploration activities do not indicate good prospects for
di scovery. He explained that it can take a while to do research
and exploration necessary to identify the nost |ikely prospects
for further exploration. He said it takes a few test wells to
determ ne how much resource nmay be available. He indicated that
Anadar ko's exploration activities my speed up if it looks I|ike
the pipeline project is progressing. He said that under the
current tineline set forth in the A aska Gasline |Inducenment Act
(A A we "probably are not likely to be in the initial open
season” if the possible tineline of 2011 holds true. He said
that Anadarko could be offering an expansion for the gas
pi peline two years after the initial open season, which would be
"wel | before" construction will have started.

1: 14: 02 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- April 14, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked how long it takes to provide gas to
an existing pipeline.

MR. HANLEY replied that it depends on the situation, but it

could be anywhere from five to ten years after discovery. He
said that if Anadarko nmkes a discovery, it wll proceed as
qui ckly as possible to be ready to provide gas for a pipeline
proj ect. He noted Anadarko has already done quite a bit of

expl orati on.
1:17: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG noted that Anadarko expl ores about 200
mles south of Prudhoe Bay and asked whether there should be
sonme type of in-put point in the Gates of the Arctic area.

MR.  HANLEY replied vyes. He suggested that there nmay be
conversations with other conpanies so that they are aware of
where Anadarko is working and how to best design the project to
nmeet future needs.

1:19: 53 PM
REPRESENTATI VE  GUTTENBERG not ed t he desire for di st ance
sensitive rates and asked about how Anadarko views distance

sensitive rate issues.

VR. HANLEY responded that the Federal Energy Regul atory

Conmi ssion (FERC) has addressed distance sensitive rates. He
stated that Anadarko could argue to FERC that it should not have
to pay the rate "if we cone in 200 mles south.” He agreed with

an observation that there may need to be a gas treatnent plant
(GTP) to prepare the gas to enter a pipeline.

1: 20: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether as an independent producer,
Anadarko is covered under the expansion criteria of AQA as
currently draft ed.

MR. HANLEY said he believes so, but that he will look at AD A s
| anguage again to make sure it should not say "delivery and
recei pt points,” a change he indicated may nmake Anadarko "fee

nmore confortable.”™ He explained that the issue of where in-take
points should be wll likely depend on the actual project
desi gn.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- April 14, 2007



1: 21: 58 PM

MR. HANLEY said that Anadarko supports the process set forth in
AG A and opined that it provides three opportunities for input:
t he initial | egi sl ation, public comment on subm tted
applications, and final legislative review of the recomended
appl i cation.

1: 23: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how the wtness views the final
|l egislative review and whether he thinks that the |icense
application could be nodified at that point.

MR. HANLEY replied that it appears that the process for fina

legislative review is still being devel oped. He opined that
what ever the process, Anadarko has the ability for input. He
said he thinks AG A creates a conpetitive process, noting that
over 90 percent of gas reserves are controlled by three
conpani es. He suggested that if the producers own the pipeline,

the project deserves extra scrutiny, a point he clained is borne
out by prior FERC actions in the 1970s whereby the producers
were prohibited from "owning this pipe.” He opined that there
are different notivators between pipeline conpanies and
producers. He suggested that pipeline conmpani es have experience
working to consolidate interests so that a project can get
started. He explained that pipelines are risky financially and
that tensions between different interests are considered by FERC

in the regulatory process. He suggested that a producer owned
pipeline may not be developed wth the business interest
tensions that typically help establish a lower tariff. He

rem nded the conmttee that a higher tariff means a |ower well-
head pri ce.

1: 29: 55 PM

MR. HANLEY went on to say that Anadarko approves of the "nust
haves" set forth in AQA such as the mandatory provisions on

access and rates. Anadar ko supports requiring biennial
assessnment of nmarket demand for expansions. He expressed
approval for requiring the pipeline ower to commt to expand in
reasonable increments on reasonable terns. Furt hernore, he

i ndi cated approval of rolled-in rates up to 15 percent above
initial rate and of precluding negotiated rate agreenents that
woul d preclude rolled-in rates. He said these three provisions
increase the "confort of explorers” to "get into the pipeline.”

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- April 14, 2007



1: 32: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether negotiated rates could
result in a rate of return so low that the pipeline becones
uneconom ¢ for the buil der.

MR. HANLEY opined that negotiated rates are common business
practice and are the subject of at |east two FERC orders. He
suggested that there are ways for the owners to structure the
rates so that the project is econom cally advantageous. He said
he was not aware of whether negotiated rates could be used for
| everage, but that Anadarko supports the l|language in AG A that
negoti ated rates cannot be used to preclude rolled-in rates.

1: 35: 16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noted that Anadarko does not anticipate
bidding to build the pipeline or participating in the first open
season, and opined that therefore only the provisions 1in
proposed AS 43.90.130(5)-(7) would apply to it. He stated he
under st ands why Anadarko woul d support subsections five and six.
He opined that subsection seven on rolled-in rates would limt
|ater rates charged to additional shippers. He noted that the
prior testinmony by the producers indicated disapproval wth
t hese three subsections and offered that is because the pipeline
bui | der has concerns over accepting the risk at the first part
of the project. He asked whether an expansion process could
result in | ower rates.

MR. HANLEY answered that yes, an expansion could "drive
everybody's tariffs down."

1: 38: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked why an entity with gas for sale would
cormit all its gas during an initial open season if it could
potentially wait and get a better price during a future
expansi on.

MR. HANLEY opined that there is incentive to participate on a
| arge scale because economes of scale help to reduce the
tariffs. He offered that during an expansion gas is offered
that may not have been identified during the initial open
season.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- April 14, 2007



REPRESENTATIVE ROSES noted that under certain expansion
circunstances initial suppliers can opt out of the volune they
initially put in the pipeline.

1:41:14 PM
MR. HANLEY referred to a graph titled "Indicative Expansion

Tariffs,” [slide one to a PowerPoint presentation provided to
the commttee] which he explained shows the result of expansions

on both rolled-in and increnental tariffs. The prediction is
t hat rolled-in tariffs would result in a lower tariff,
particularly if +the expansion required |ooping rather than
conpr essi on. He suggested that shippers would want to Kkeep

their gas in the line and not pull any out.
1:43: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RCSES noted that the sanples shown on the graph
predict a lower tariff after the first expansion and questioned
why a shipper would not want to adjust its input to capture
| ower tariffs.

MR. HANLEY indi cated sone confusion regarding the aforenmentioned
scenario, and stated he did not know why a shipper would "back
out" volunme from a pipeline.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether the initial suppliers also
benefit fromlater |owered rates.

MR. Hanl ey answered yes.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES questioned why there was dispute over the
incremental 15 percent increase above the maxi num recourse rate
if everyone, even initial shippers, would benefit from |owered
tariffs during an expansion.

MR. HANLEY continued to describe expansion possibilities, using
the exanples on slide 1. He noted that a second expansion by
conpression would be nore costly than the first expansion, but
that the increnental rate would be higher than the rolled-in

rate wunder this scenario. He said that constructing new
pipeline for expansion is nore expensive, and raises the
tariffs, particularly if increnmental tariffs are wused. He

expl ained that the issue of what constitutes a subsidy would be
consi dered by FERC. He offered that under current FERC rul es,
the rate is rolled-in when it goes down for everyone, but is
raised increnentally "when it goes up." However, he rem nded

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- April 14, 2007



the commttee that under FERC there is a "presunption of rolled-
in rates.” He pointed out that prior testinony claimng AGQA
can result in one party subsidizing another could be
characterized as correct, except that AG A does not determ ne
the rate. I nstead, the pipeline ower is required to ask for a
rolled-in rate "up to those certain levels." He offered that
FERC will decide whether there is a subsidy or not. He opi ned
that AGGA as witten requires the pipeline to "ask for a roll ed-
in rate" while the initial shippers are free to argue before
FERC that the rates not go up. He characterized this as a
"natural tension to the system"” He indicated that if the
producers own the pipeline, the tensions that contribute to |ow
rates nmay not exist. He concluded that FERC would make any
actual decision regarding whether the future expansion rates
result in any subsi dy.

CO CHAIR GATTO noted that a | ooping expansion could cause rates
to rise for everyone; therefore there nay be sone incentive to
not expand to 7.5 billion cubic feet (Bcf) per day.

1: 52: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether the provisions in AJA which
set a rolled-in rate up to 15 percent basically sets a
negotiated rate, and therefore avoids "the problem of whether it
is a subsidy or not."

MR. HANLEY opined that AQ A prohibits a negotiated rate that
woul d prohibit roll-in and offered that FERC will still decide
t he subsidy question. AG A requires the pipeline owner to ask
for rolled-in rates up to 15 percent above the initial recourse
rat es. He explained that all providers run the risk of
increased rates, but that it is inportant that explorers have
access to the pipeline. He offered that at |east one pipeline
conpany clains it is possible to expand up to 7 Bcf per day and
still be belowthe initial tariff if rolled-in rates are used.

1: 59: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noted that rolled-in rates are used in
Canada, and that much of the pipeline may go through Canada,
where it would be subject to rolled-in rates. She offered that
a pipeline owner and shipper nay desire a different rate
structure, but that if a shipper was also the owner it would
still be able to be "able to wite off things and still cone out
better.”

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- April 14, 2007



MR. HANLEY opined that the producers support increnmental rates
and do not like the rolled-in rates.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON offered that increnmental rates may benefit
the initial shippers.

MR. HANLEY said that current FERC policy "would roll-in this
rate."

2:02: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said that she has been told by producers
that AG A requires use of rolled-in rates even though there may
be a situation where they would not want rolled-in rates.

MR. HANLEY agreed and opined that rolled-in rates could require
the producers as shippers to pay a higher tariff after an
expansi on. However, a pipeline conpany that would rmake noney on
an expansion would not mnd rolling the costs in as it is "not
t hat nmuch nore."

2:04: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES clarified that a rolled-in rate would apply
to all who ship gas in the pipeline. He asked if the sane holds
true for increnental rates - does the increnmental cost increase
apply only to the new gas being shipped while everybody else
"would stay at the old rate.™

2: 05: 37 PM

MR. HANLEY agreed that everyone shares rolled-in rates, while
increnental rates apply only to the new shi ppers.

2: 05: 56 PM

REPRESENTATIVE ROSES clarified that the AGA provisions on
rolled-in rates limts the rates to not nore than 15 percent
above the initial rates. If the rate increased nore than 15

percent, would any excess "then fall back on the person that is
addi ng the gas," he asked.

MR. HANLEY replied that the pipeline owner will be free to argue
that any increase over 15 percent be by increnental rates, but
said that FERC w Il make the deci sion.

2: 06: 38 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- April 14, 2007



CO- CHAIR GATTO asked if the contract provisions limting the
increase to 15 percent would limt the ability of the pipeline
owners to nake this argumnent.

MR. HANLEY responded that under the bill, the shipper is free to
argue against the rolled-in rate |imtation. The pipeline owner
is required to support rolled-in rates up to "those |evels"
before FERC, while the shipper is free to argue against use of
rolled-in rates and in favor of incremental rates.

2:07:21 PM

CO CHAIR CGATTO asked if the initial rate will stay the sane
shoul d the pipeline not be expanded.

MR. HANLEY stated he believed the rates can change even absent
expansi on.

CO- CHAIR GATTO noted that inflation alone could potentially
rai se rates and questioned how that would affect an expansion if
the 15 percent rate increase is already reached due to inflation
at the time of a proposed expansion.

MR. HANLEY responded that AG A addresses that by putting a cap
on the rate increases. He suggested that the |anguage regarding
the termnus of expansion be clarified so that the rate
increases apply only to the sections of the pipeline being
expanded.

2:09: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON requested clarification as to whether AGA
requires a shipper to argue for rolled-in rates before FERC even
if it prefers increnental rates.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG noted that the owner wll receive a
return on its investnent regardless of whether rolled-in or

increnental rates are used. However, if the owner is also a
shi pper, "you would argue the other way." He suggested that
there nmay be a benefit to "separating those out,”™ and to either

not allow a shipper to be an owner, or to require a shipper to
be an i ndependent subsidiary of its owner-parent conpany.

MR. HANLEY stated that his understanding of AG A is that the

pipeline owner is required to request rolled-in rates, but the
shipper is not. He opined that the bill tries to separate owner

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- April 14, 2007



and shipper interests to maintain sonme conpetitive tension that
woul d not exist were the shipper and owner conbi ned.

CO- CHAIR GATTO noted that this is a nonopoly pipeline as there
are no conpeting projects in the vicinity. He said that he
believes FERC is aware of this and wll nove in the best
interest of the public.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG noted that prior testinony was that
the percentage of ownership of the gas should be equal to the
percentage of ownership of the pipe; therefore "we only have
that problemif the producers build this line."

2:14: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked the wtness' opinion of requiring
expansion to be substantially simlar to the original pipe size
[ AS 43.90. 130(6)(B)].

MR. HANLEY replied he did not know why this requirenent woul d be
in the bill, although he has asked others for this information.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether there should be a provision
in AG A about places for future in-put points and where those
shoul d be.

MR. HANLEY agreed this was a valid point, and could use sone
addi tional discussion and clarification.

2:17: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON asked whether applicants should be
required to specify where their gas wll come from and the
anounts thereof. He noted there may be a risk of authorizing a

project that cannot supply the anmount of gas necessary to make
t he pl anned project work.

2:19:10 PM

MR. HANLEY opined that the shippers or others need to ask the
Alaska G| and Gas Conservation Conmm ssion (AOGCC) about the
anount of gas avail able. As to whether a project could be
designed absent this know edge, he noted that the state is
"asking folks to come up with sone rough idea of what they would
do in an application process."” He offered that whether the
anount of volume needed for a particular project would be
avai lable is a question that needs to be answered at sonme point.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- April 14, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about possible future carbon
em ssions tax issues and whether funds from carbon trading
should go into reducing the tariff.

MR. HANLEY replied "we |ike anything that reduces the tariff,”
and noted this is a potential issue that could be addressed by
applicants in their proposal.

2:22:38 PM

CO-CHAIR GATTO asked how carbon em ssion issues, such as taxes
and caps are handl ed by his conpany.

MR. HANLEY answered that his conpany is aware of these issues
and has done work so as to recover nore oil in at |east one
si tuati on.

CO- CHAIR GATTO noted that the gas is rich in carbon dioxide and
the issue of where to put it wll come up.

MR. HANLEY replied that in Prudhoe Bay the gas is re-injected to

help recover nore oil and noted there are sone engineering
i ssues involved regarding what to do with gas that "comes back
up" after re-injection. He offered to provide the committee

with more information on this issue.

The commttee took an at ease from 2:25:26 PMto 2:41: 39 PM

2:42: 03 PM

TONY PALMER, Vice-President, Alaska Developnent, TransCanada
Cor por ati on, Inc., (TransCanada) referred to a PowerPoint
presentation that was provided to the commttee and expl ained
that the conpany has been in business for 50 years and owns
36,500 mles of regulated natural gas pipeline which noves 15
Bcf of gas per day. The conpany owns approximtely two-thirds
of the take-away capacity from the Al berta Energy Conpany Ltd.,
(AEC) hub to North American markets. He offered that the AEC
hub is the nost liquid trading hub in North Anerica, which he
opined would be beneficial for Al aska' s gas. He said that
TransCanada also owns significant storage capacity, which can
allow for storage of gas during the sumrer for sale during the
wi nter when the price may be higher. He noted that one-third of
Al aska H ghway pipeline, called the Foothills pre-build, 1is
currently in the ground and transports 3 Bcf a day. He
nmenti oned that in 2006 TransCanada's cash flow was $2.4 billion,

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- April 14, 2007



which he clained was sufficient to cover the entire equity of

the Canadi an section of the Alaska project for one year. He
expl ai ned t hat Tr ansCanada recently successful ly rai sed
approximately $1.7 billion in equity. He relayed that

successful pipeline projects require nore than engineering; they
also require the ability to obtain necessary regulatory

approval . He enphasi zed that TransCanada has operated with an
i ndependent pipeline nodel and rolled-in tolls [rates] to
devel op its Canadi an resources. He referred to slide 5, which

shows the proposed Al aska H ghway Project and how its current
infrastructure is integrated into the planned Al aska project.
He characterized TransCanada as being a lead player in the

Al aska gas pipeline project since its inception. The conpany
has invested over $2 billion over the last 30 years in this
proj ect . He explained that TransCanada's subsidiary, Foothills

Pipe Lines Ltd., (Foothills), holds exclusive certificates under
the Northern Pipeline Act (NPA) for the Canadian section of the
Al aska project and that these certificates do not have an
expiration date. He told nenbers that Canada and the United
States have entered a treaty regarding this project which
identifies Foothills as the Canadian sponsor and sets out the
rights and responsibilities of each nation. He said that
TransCanada holds an easenent for the proposed right that is
recogni zed by the Canadian governnent, the Yukon Territorial
governnment, and Yukon First Nations.

2:53: 20 PM

MR. PALMER explained that 30 years ago, the Canadian Nationa

Energy Board (NEB) held conpetitive hearings to select the
Canadi an project sponsor and Foothills was selected as the
Canadi an sponsor. Subsequently, Canada and the United States
negotiated a treaty for the Alaska gas project whereby Canada
obtained benefits in exchange for access across Canada for
Al aska gas. This treaty also established a single-w ndow
regul ator to conplenent the NEB. TransCanada has used NPA to
construct and expand the pre-build sections of the pipeline. He
enphasi zed that Foothills was granted exclusive rights wth
regard to the Alaska project and that no party would invest the
huge suns necessary w thout that exclusivity.

MR. PALMER referred to slide 8 and explained that in 1976
TransCanada received a conditional FERC certificate granted
under the Alaska Natural Gas Transportation Act of 1976

(ANGTA) . He said that in 2004 further enabling legislation
updated these provisions to give TransCanada further options as
to how to proceed under AGA He rem nded nenbers that

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- April 14, 2007



TransCanada has applied to Alaska for a state right-of-way and
is still awaiting a decision on this matter. He nentioned that
TransCanada has openly offered to vend its Alaska assets to
whoever successfully conmercializes the Al aska portion with one
caveat - to connect to TransCanada's system at the Al aska-Yukon
bor der. He described the route of the Canadian section and
noted it follows highway routes fairly closely in many secti ons.

2:58: 09 PM

MR. PALMER referred to slide 10 and enphasized that TransCanada
has a federal easenent for the pipeline route through the Yukon
Territory. He indicated that work is still being done for the
route through British Colunbia and Al berta, but nentioned that
the route passes through very little private land and through no
First Nations' reserves in British Colunmbia and Al berta. He
offered that six of eight First Nations groups have recognized
the pipeline route and settled for their land clains with the

Canadi an federal governnent. He characterized the project as
providing significant benefits to First Nations' people such as
enpl oynment, local natural gas availability, representation on

the Foothills Board of Directors, environnmental protections,
equity participation, and zonal tolls.

3:07: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked about the process of working with
First Nations groups in British Colunbia and how long it may
take to settle sone clains.

MR. PALMER clarified that within the Yukon Territory the Kaska
and White River groups are the only parties without final |and
clains settlenment at this point. There are sonme groups in
British Colunbia that do not have a final Jland clains
settlenment, however the proposed pipeline route would not go
through any First Nations' reserve land in that province, he
expl ai ned. He said that now is not the appropriate tinme to
secure those right-of-ways needed in British Colunbia, but
opi ned that obtainnment of the necessary right-of-ways could be
done expeditiously once the Alaska gas pipeline project was
under way.

3:08:56 PM
CO- CHAI R JOHNSON asked about whether the tax rates were "l ocked

in with regard to Canada.” He asked what the rate was, and for
how | ong it was guarant eed.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 15- April 14, 2007



MR. PALMER expl ained that the treaty between the United States
and Canada established the structure of Canadian property taxes
wi thin Canada for this project. Under the ternms of the treaty,
the parties agreed that the Canadian provinces wth existing
pipelines wll charge the Al aska pipeline the same property tax
rate applied to domestic projects. At the tinme of the treaty,
there was no pipeline within the Yukon Territory, so the treaty
establi shed sonme specific nunbers regarding what rate could be

char ged. He said that the rates in Canada do change, and are
not uniform between provinces, but opined they are conpetitive
with Lower 48 rates. He explained that the rates are

established for the duration of the treaty, which continues
through 2012 and beyond, wunless either country revokes the
treaty. He clarified that those parties agreed that the tax
rates for the Al aska project would be the sanme as for donestic
Canadi an pi pel i nes. The parties did not establish a specific
rate within the Canadi an provinces but they agreed to apply the
Canadi an rate to Al aska gas, he expl ai ned.

3:13: 00 PM
CO CHAI R GATTO asked about the term"greenfield project."”

MR. PALMER expl ained that a greenfield project would not use the
NPA or the treaty and that TransCanada and Foothills are not
proposi ng a greenfield project.

CO CHAI R GATTO asked about project |abor agreenents and whet her
TransCanada woul d want to participate in such an agreenent.

MR. PALMER suggested that for Alaska sections of the project
TransCanada would | ook to Al aska standards and for the Canadi an
sections would look to Canadian standards. He offered
TransCanada wll do whatever is appropriate at the tinme to
insure the project can be conpl eted econom cally.

3:14: 23 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO asked whether under AG A, TransCanada would be
willing to submt an offer, or whether there are sone paraneters
in AA "that aren't livable."

MR. PALMER responded that he would Iike anmendments to the
provision that requires the chosen applicant to pursue a FERC
certificate through an unsuccessful open season. He offered
that TransCanada would |ike that provision anended so that an

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- April 14, 2007



applicant could continue to pursue custoners and alternate forns

of <credit, but would not be required to pursue a FERC
certificate if insufficient volumes had been tendered at the
initial open season. He offered that he understands that the

state has many potential benefits from the project, such as
royalties and taxes. However, the pipeline conpany only has one
form of reinbursenent - the return on the investnent it nakes in
the equity component of the project. He indicated TransCanada
would like to hold off from pursuit of a FERC certificate if
there was not sufficient credit or an adequate custoner base.

3:16: 27 PM

CO-CHAIR GATTO characterized the provision regarding FERC
certification [AS 43.90.130(3)] as one of the twenty "nust
haves. "

CO- CHAIR JOHNSON asked if the treaty required TransCanada to
provide off-take points to the Yukon communities of Beaver Creek
and Wit ehor se.

MR. PALMER clarified that TransCanada has an obligation through
the treaty and NPA to install an off-take valve to allow those
communities to take gas from the system He characterized the
vol une that would go to these communities as mniml conpared to
the whole volunme of gas in the pipeline, but inportant to those
cust oners.

CO CHAIR JOHNSON asked if AG A s distance-sensitive rates would
be taken into consideration in providing access to gas to
Canadi an conmuni ti es.

MR. PALMER explained that the pipeline in Canada would have
"zonal tolls" in which custoners pay only the upstream portion
of pipeline tolls. For exanple, a custonmer in Beaver Creek
would only pay tolls for the section of pipeline from Beaver
Creek to Witehorse.

3:19: 02 PM

CO-CHAIR JOHNSON asked if rolled-in rates in Canada are
calculated the sane as rolled-in rates in the United States.

MR. PALMER replied no. He explained that wi thin Canada roll ed-
in tolls [rates] are the norm Wen there is a pipeline
expansion the new rate is charged on an "average, rolled-in"
basis to all customers regardl ess of whether the rate increases

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- April 14, 2007



or decreases. However in the United States, FERC has tended to
allow rolled-in rates when tariffs decline as a result of an
expansi on, but not when they increase. Furt hernore, when the
volume of gas decreases, the rate would increase on a unit
basi s.

3:21:43 PM
CO- CHAIR JOHNSON asked if the toll to Canadian shippers wll
decrease when Al aska gas reaches Alberta due to the additional

vol une of gas.

MR. PALMER responded that TransCanada expects that the total

pi peline system l|eaving Alberta wll have sufficient spare
capacity in 10 years' tine to nove Alaska's entire volune of gas
to market w thout increnental facilities. He opined that this

woul d benefit Al aska by providing market diversity to Alaska's
gas. Second, it should reduce the risk of capital cost overrun
by abbreviating the project. However, under the current toll
mechani sm in Canada, Canadian custoners would benefit because
the toll rates would decrease due to the volunmes of Alaska's

gas. He offered that there would also be benefits to Al aska
because the toll would be lower than would apply to a new
pi pel i ne.

CO CHAI R JOHNSON asked if there is anything in Canadi an | aw that
prohi bits Alaska fromsharing in the tariff reduction.

MR. PALMER replied that the "tolling mechanism in place in
Canada would result in a lower tariff for all pipeline shippers;
however it would not specifically designate value solely to
Al aska gas.
3:23:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked if increased in rates in Canada woul d
al so apply to Alaska gas since under the Canadian system rates
are "rolled-in" for both increases and decreases.

MR. PALMER answered yes-each shi pper woul d pay the average rate.
3:24:39 PM

CO- CHAIR GATTO asked whether it is unusual for gas to nove from
one country to a second country and back to the first country.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- April 14, 2007



MR. PALMER replied that such a situation is "very rare". He
noted that gas is noved from Canada, through the northern m d-
western United States and back into Canada. He indicated that
United State's narkets are served from the segnent of the |ine
in the United States.

3:25:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked if there is a mninmum volune
necessary for TransCanada to be interested in the Al aska gas
pi pel i ne project.

MR. PALMER replied that is a difficult prediction to make as it
depends wupon natural gas prices and narkets over the com ng
years. However, if the design were to be for a 48 inch
pipeline, it would be appropriate that volune be sonewhere
between 4 and 4.5 Bcf a day to start. He opined that the vol une
could be slightly less and "still nake the economcs work,"
al though the tariffs would increase. He observed that if the
volunme was estimated to be significantly lower than 4 Bcf a day
for some tine, then the parties should "look clearly" at a
smal | er dianmeter pipeline, and noted that wth this approach, if
vol unes increased, one "would see higher costs.” He said these
decisions would need to be made based on the expectations of
initial and predicted future gas flow He rem nded the
committee that TransCanada's system started at |less than .5 Bcf
a day but it now has a series of six pipelines that carry
approximately 7 Bcf a day. He concluded that nmuch of the design
is based on available gas, expected nmarket prices, and market
demands. TransCanada has estimated that the Al aska project
woul d have 4 to 4.5 Bcf of gas avail able at the beginning of the
project and be expandable "quite readily" up to 6 Bcf wth
conpr essi on al one.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether a volume of 2.5 Bcf would
still allow for a viable project, and noted that if there was an
in-state line to Valdez it would reduce capacity available for a
pi pel i ne t hrough Canada.

MR. PALMER replied that under the aforenentioned scenario, tolls
[tariffs] in Canada would be higher. The project could still be
econonmc if custoners were prepared to sign shipping agreenents
based on the higher prices. He offered his belief that the
potential buyers "would |ook very carefully" at the pipeline
tariff and that "would be significant factor” in their decision.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- April 14, 2007



3:29:46 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO asked whether in approximately 10 years, "Alberta
woul d need 1 Bcf to operate the Tar Sands."

MR. PALMER replied that there are different forecasts for demand

and observed that "oil sands and heavy oil" devel opnents are
significant factors that are expected to drive demand in Western
Canada. He said that he has seen differing estimates for the

anount of future demand for gas. He said that there has been a
very large growmh in Wstern Canada's demand for gas, but a
relatively Ilow production profile. He expected that gas
production in Wstern Canada is expected to decline over the
next 10 years which will open up nore gas pipeline capacity.
Sonme estimates are that within 10 years' tine there will be 4.5
Bcf of spare capacity in the gas pipelines |eaving Al berta, he
sai d.

CO- CHAIR GATTO observed that iif Alaska shipped 6.5 Bcf to
Al berta, Alberta could take off 1 to 1.5 Bcf and leave gas in
the pipeline for transport to other markets. He asked about the
estimated future demands for gas.

MR. PALMER reiterated that he expects that Al aska's gas vol une
woul d start at around 4 to 4.5 Bcf a day. |If the gas started at
6 to 6.5 Bcf a day, then there may be a need to construct other
facilities away from Al berta to ship Alaska gas to other

mar ket s. He explained that TransCanada expects a continued
increase in the market's need for gas. He also expects that gas
production in Wstern Canada will continue to decline in the
future

3:33: 04 PM

CO- CHAIR GATTO asked whether the future demand for gas may
decrease due to other energy sources and whether the future
price of gas "may be sonewhat reliable over the long term" He
relayed that gas is currently priced at "around $7.90."

MR. PALMER recalled that energy forecasts predict natural gas
prices in 10 years to be around $6.60 (in future dollars), which
is lower than today's prices. The expectation 1is that
additional supplies wll noderate the price of gas. He offered
his belief that higher gas prices have a "danpening" effect on
demand. However, if the estimates for |ower prices are correct,

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- April 14, 2007



he predicted one would "see a nodest increase in natural gas
demand over the next decade.™

3:35: 50 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO asked about the future devel opnment of coal-fired
power plants in Canada.

MR. PALMER expl ained that Alberta has historically had a great
nunber of "m ne nouth" coal-fired power plants. He expects coa
plants to continue, although there may be future carbon or
climte change taxes inposed that would change the econom cs of

coal plants. In eastern Canada, energy cones from coal

nucl ear, and hydropower plants. He explained that the current
Canadi an federal governnent plans to phase out coal plants over
the course of several years. In further response, he explained

that Ontario has had a significant nuclear presence for many
years and TransCanada is an investor in at |east one nuclear
power plant. The aforenentioned change to nuclear power is
related to environnental concerns as well as to the fundanental
econom cs of power generation in certain areas of the country.

3:39: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about the possible future effect on
pipeline tariffs due to <changes in regulations based on
greenhouse gas concerns. He offered that a three percent
t hr ough-put for conpression and operation of the pipeline could
doubl e the carbon di oxi de em ssions for Al aska.

MR. PALMER replied that although TransCanada wll be facing

those issues, it does not expect there will be a significant
inpact on pipeline tariffs. He offered that it is up to
| egislators to decide what laws will actually be passed in this
ar ea.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about TransCanada's efforts to
conply with voluntary em ssions' reduction standards.

MR. PALMER responded that TransCanada follows the voluntary
requirenents in Canada and the United States. He said it has a
hi gh qual ity per f or mance record for conpl i ance W th
envi ronment al standards.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- April 14, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON asked whether AQd A should require
applicants to address whether they are in voluntary conpliance
wi th environnental standards.

MR. PALMER opined that inclusion of such a requirenent is not
necessary because any party that is responsible and has a track
record will follow voluntary environnental standards.

3:42: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if AGQA's provision regarding a
cormmitment to rolled-in rates up to 15 percent is unusual [AS
43.90. 130(7)].

MR. PALMER explained that wthin Canada there is not a
nunerically capped |limt to rates. Toll [rate] increases and
decreases are generically rolled-in and applied to all shippers.
Due to the large pipeline base in Canada, even a significant
expansion to the pipeline does not have much of an effect on the
rates, he explained. He told nenbers that TransCanada has
anal yzed the Al aska project assuming an initial project volune
of 4.5 Bcf a day. Under its estimated scenario, if expansions
were made through conpression in year one, the rolled-in rates
woul d decline from 4.5 Bcf a day to a |ower nunber, "right
through 5.9 Bcf. Even if future expansions up to 7 Bcf a day
require looping |[construction of additional pipeline], the
rolled in rate would still be below the initial 4.5 Bcf rate, he
opi ned. He enphasized that TransCanada generally supports
rolled-in tariffs and would do so for this project.

3:45: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to proposed AS 43.90.130(6)(B)
which requires that an applicant commit to looping with a pipe
size that is substantially simlar to the original pipe size.
He asked whether it is usual to use the sane pipe size as the
original pipe for looping and whether this provision should be
included in AGQ A

MR. PALMER replied that normally an expansion that required
| oopi ng "woul d see a pipe dianmeter of equivalent size," although
sonetines larger pipe is used. He went on to say the decision
of how to proceed is based upon the expectation of |ong-term

supply and denand. He opined that it would introduce
significant system inefficiencies if [looping was done wth
differing pipe sizes or with different sized conpressors. He

offered that the Jlanguage in AGQA regarding expansion 1is

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- April 14, 2007



appropriate as it would increase future efficiencies for
pi pel i ne expansi on.

3:48: 53 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether there are situations where
the initial shippers pay a negotiated rate of 85 percent of the

initial maxi mum recourse rates.

MR. PALMER noted that he has not seen an analysis in which

shippers pay 85 percent of the initial recourse rates. He
explained that aforementioned situation could occur in the
following scenario: |If the project were to proceed with 4.5 Bcf

a day initial volume with 25 year contracts, he would expect
that pipeline "would establish tolls" that would collect the
depreciation on the project over the course of the 25 years.
For the purposes of the exanple, the toll [rate] would be $2.00.
However if the recourse rates were established to collect the
entire depreciation of the pipeline over 15 years, the tol

[rate] would be significantly higher, such as $2.50. He opi ned
that in that circunstance, negotiated rates could be established
for 25 years that are significantly below the recourse rate

using a 15 year depreciation period. However, if both the
recourse and negotiated rates had simlar recovery periods for
depreciation, then there would not be "anything like a 15

percent difference" between the recourse rate and the negoti ated
rates, he offered.

3:51:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON recalled TransCanada's desire for an
anendnent to the requirenment that an applicant pursue a FERC
certificate after open season. He asked for an explanation of
this issue.

MR. PALMER replied that he understands that prior to an open
season the state would pay costs up to 50 percent, and woul d pay

costs up to 80 percent after open season. Based on this, the
pi peline sponsor would pay 50 percent prior to open season and
20 percent after open season. TransCanada believes it is a

positive developnent that the state share costs after open
season, as such an arrangenent would have the state sharing the
risks as well as the benefits of the project. However, in the
event of an unsuccessful open season, TransCanada would very
much prefer to focus its efforts on obtaining additional
custoners or credit rather than to pursue a FERC certificate.
He told nenbers pursuit of a FERC certificate is a "significant

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- April 14, 2007



initiative" that requires nmuch effort and a substantial
expenditure of funds that could be used instead to attract
addi ti onal custoners.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how a pipeline |licensee would
proceed to obtain gas for the pipeline if there is an
unsuccessful open season. He noted that if there is a FERC
certificate, the holders of the gas would be required to sell
the gas if it is economc, but would not be so required absent a
FERC certificate.

MR. PALMER rel ated that TransCanada has held a conditional FERC
certificate on this project for sone 30 years. The |ack of
custoners and credit has caused the project not to proceed. He
stated that he wunderstands the state's desire for a FERC
certificate and its willingness to pay up to 80 percent of the

costs to obtain the «certificate. However , obt ai nnent  of
custoners and credit are the critical factors for a successful
proj ect, he expl ai ned. Al though a FERC certificate is

inportant, he reiterated that an anendnent to this requirenent
woul d i ncrease TransCanada's ability to bid on this project.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired as to what TransCanada could do
to secure gas if there is a failed open season.

MR. PALMER responded that TransCanada woul d review the proposa

made during initial open season and would review coments from
custoners who signed as those who did not to determne how to
i nprove the proposal and attract nore custoners. He suggested
they may propose a "follow up" open season. TransCanada woul d
look to the state to see if it would take any additional

actions. Additionally, it would |look to the producers to see if
they were increasing exploration activities.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from4:00:08 PMto 4:01: 36 PM

4:01: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked if it would nake nore sense to hold
open season prior to issuing a license.

MR. PALMER answered that he is not sure how that would work and
expressed uncertainty as to who would conduct the open season in

such a case. He opined that the state would be required to
perform a significant anmount of pipeline wrk to be in the
position to put forth a credible proposal. He questioned

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- April 14, 2007



whether the state could choose a party outside of AGJA to
prepare for an open season.

4:02:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked about AS 43.90.130(5) regarding a
commtment to review market demand for additional capacity every
two years.

MR. PALMER replied that the aforementioned subsection is not of
concern as TransCanada will seek to expand this project.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether TransCanada has concerns
about AS 43.90.130(10) regarding commtnent to any proposed GIP
based on "a capital structure for rate-making that consists of
not |l ess than 70 percent debt."

MR. PALMER replied that it is not uncommon for |arge projects to
be highly leveraged wwth 70 to 75 percent debt. He noted that
the United States federal governnent is willing to provide a

| oan guarantee of up to 80 percent. He opined that the project
will require long-term transportation contracts to be able to
reduce the business risk on the project so that it can bear the
substantial financial risk of 70 percent or nore debt. He
concluded that the debt ratio is not of concern to TransCanada
if it can obtain properly structured firm transportation
agr eenent s. In further response, he indicated that the

requi renent in subsection 14 that an applicant have | ocal
headquarters in Alaska is not of concern and TransCanada woul d
| ook to have a | ocal headquarters.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether TransCanada has concerns
about AS 43.90.130(16) which requires an applicant to waive its
right to appeal the award of the project to another applicant.

MR. PALMER replied that TransCanada has participated in many
projects that require responses to requests for proposals. He
opined that if the process for decision-making is fairly
est abl i shed, "we take our chances as to whether we win or |ose."
| f the governnent of Alaska establishes a fair process and if
TransCanada is not chosen, it "will live with the consequences.”

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES set forth that AQA is basically the

structure for the upcom ng proposal and asked whether based on
that, TransCanada "can live with the | ack of appeal process."

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -25- April 14, 2007



MR. PALMER rem nded nenbers that there is not yet an actua
request for proposal [request for application], but assured the
commttee that if the application cones out on a fair basis and
establishes a process that is equitable to the parties, we "wll
live with the consequences.”

[HB 177 was held in conmttee.]
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Resources Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 4:09:03
PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 26- April 14, 2007



